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Daniel Dennis & Company LLP

Certified Public Accoresatanis

The Board of Directors
Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Independent Auditors' Report

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) as
of December 31, 2003, and the related statements of revenues and expenses and changes in find
balance for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management
of CRA. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An auvdit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
stalemnents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Consistent with the practices of many municipalities in the Commonwealth of Massachusetis, CRA
expenses its fixed assel purchases in the year of purchase and does not maintain a peneral fixed asset
account group.

In our opinion, except for the effects, if any, of the matters referred to in the preceding paragraph of
this report, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as of December 31, 2003, and the results
of its operations and chanpes in fund balance for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
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116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Magsachusets 02116 (617) 2629898 Fax (617) 437-9937



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Combined Balance Sheot
December 31, 2003

Assets
General
Project Long-Term
Funds Obligations Total*
Cash and deposits $ 12,943 % “ $ 12,943
Accounts receivable 52,179 - 52,179
Prepaid expenscs 26,780 - 26,780
Security deposit 7,306 - 7,306
Amount to be provided for retirement
ol general long-term obligations - 262,626 262,626
Total assets $ 09208 § 262,626 § 361,834
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Accounts payable $ 27245 % - $ 27,245
Accrued wages 2,941 - 2,941
Deferred rent 14,308 - 14,308
Deposits held 4,353 - 4,353
Line of credit (Note 7) 901,202 - 501,202
Accrued vacation and sick leave - 262,626 262,626
Total liabilites 950,049 262,626 1,212,675
Fund balance (850,841) - (850,841}
Total liabilities and fund balances § 99208 § 262,626 $ 361,834

*Memorandum only

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Year Ended Decernber 31, 2003

Revenues:
Grants 5 58,980
Rental income 220,850
Other income 88297
Total revenues 368,127
Expenditures:
Administrative 558,806
Legal 65,569
Survey and planning 26,090
Properly management 41,722
Rent 05,130
Interest expense 35,109
Total expenditures 822,426

Excess/ (deficit) of revenues over expenditurey

See accompanying noles to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Fund balance - January 1, 2003 5 (396,542)
Excess/(deficit) of revenues over expenses (454,299)
Fund balance - December 31, 2003 § (850,841)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment( Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other comrnunity development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121B of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law., CRA was igssued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commeonwealth on November 20, 1956.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of significant accounting policics employed in the preparation of the financial
statemnents follows:

Fund Accounting - Financial activities are recorded in the funds described below, each of which is
deemed to be a separate accounting entity, The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set
of self-balancing accounts that comprisc its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and
expenditures,

Project Funds - Transactions accounted for in Project Funds relate to resources obtained and used
for specific identifiable development activities classified as projects. Individual projects may
receive funding from several sources, including federal, state and local grants, disposition proceeds,
income earned on investments and rental income. CRA separately accounts for revenues and
expenditures under each funding source. For financial reporting purposes, funding sources have
been combined on a development project basis. '

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - Unmatured long-term obligations of CRA are
accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

Basis of Accounting - The accounts of CRA are maintained and reported on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues from reimbursement
type grants are recorded when the eligible expenditures are incurred. Investment and rental income
and development deposits are recorded as income when eamed. Expenditures are recognized when
obligations are incurred firom the receipt of goods and services. Capital outlay and principal
payment on long-term debt are recorded as expenditures when purchased or when due, respectively.

Vacation and Sick Pay - Employees eam vacation and sick time as they provide services to CRA.,
They may accumulate (subject to certain limitations) unused vacation and sick time earned and,
upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused portions of the time earned.
Accordingly, these accumulated benefits, which will not be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources, are recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2003

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Froperty - CRA is the owner of certain properties within its project development areas. Generally,
properties are acquired in connection with specified development projects and the costs associated
with the acquisition of properties are expensed as incurred. Use of the proceeds from the rental and
ultimate disposition of the propertics is restricted for allowable project costs; otherwise such
amounts must be returned to the funding agency. Expenditures for office equipment are expensed
as incurred,

3. Deposits

The cash balance 15 $12,943 at December 31, 2003, which is insured in full by FDIC or the Deposit
Insurance Fund of Massachusetts.

4. Development Depasits

Through December 31, 2003 CRA has reccived $3,500,000 of development deposits from Boston
Properties Limited Partnership (BPLP), formerly Cambridge Center Associates. These deposits are
n consideration of and secure BPLP's right to the future purchase of land from CRA. Upon
purchase of the land all paid deposits would be deducted from the agreed-upon purchase price.
Through December 31, 2003, land sales applied to the deposits amounted to $3,500,000 reducing
the deposit balance 1o $0,

5. Pension Plan

CRA contributes to the Cambridge Retirement System (“System™), a cost sharing, multi-employcr
public employee retirement systern that acts as the investment and administrative agent for the City
of Cambridge. The system provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory System that is governed
by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General laws (“MGL”).

Plan members are required to contribute to the System, depending on their employment date.
Active members must contribute between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began. Participating employers are required to
pay into the System their share of the remaining system-wide actuarially determined contribution
and plan administration costs. The Commonwealth reimburses the City for a portion of the benefit
payments for cost-of-living increases. The contributions of plan members and the participating
employers are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL. CRA’s coniributions to the System for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were $37,975 and $33,817 respectively, which equaled
its required contribution for each year.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2003

6. Operating Lease

CRA entered into a 60-month lease for office space commencing on July 1, 2001, The minimum
payments due over the lease term are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Amoaunt
2004 87,670
2003 87,670
2006 43.835
Total 219,175

Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $95,130.

7. Letter of Credit

On January 7, 2002 CRA closed on a Secured Revolving Line of Credit with the Cambridge
Savings Bank in the amount of $500,000. The line of credit matured on May 1, 2003 and carries a
variable interest rate of one percent over the lender’s base rate, Collateral included in the
agreement consists of a first mortgage on a parcel of land on the corner of Binney Street and Galileo
(ralilel Way, in Kendall Square, Cambridge, Massachusetis as well as a first security inferest m all
the business assets of CRA. In April 2003 CRA closed on an additional Secured Revolving Line of
Credit with the Cambridge Savings Bank in the amount of $500,000 which carmes a variable
interest rate of one and a half percent over the lender’s base rate. In addition to the collateral
included in first agreement, a parcel of land known as Parcel 7 located at the corner of Binney
Street and the Western Comnector of Cambridge, Massachusetts is included as collateral in the
agreement. As of December 31, 2003 the outsianding halance on the line of credit was $901,202.
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Dtiscussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004

Our discussion and analysis of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority’s (CRA) financial
performance provides an overview of CRA’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004, Please read it in conjunetion with CRA’s financial statements.

CTRA as a Whole

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA} was established in 1955 1o administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
ruthorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121B of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. CRA was issued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956.

Financial Highlights

The following financial highlights are for the fiscal year 2004;

* CRA held total assets of $4,479,917 at December 31, 2004 of which $3,968,618 was cash.

* CRA held total liabilities of $1,127,328 at December 31, 2004 of which 839,568 were
development deposits from Boston Properties Limited Partnership to secure the right to the
future purchase of land from CRA.

= Total net assets for CRA were $3,352,589 at December 31, 2004,

* (CRA earmed total revenues of $4,478,361 {for the year ended December 31, 2004, of which
89.5%, were the result of the gain on the sale of two parcels of land during 2004,

* CRA had total expenses of $893,793 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The expenses
for the years ended December 31, 2004 were applicable to the following categories:

Administrative $ 587,123
Legal 99,730
Survey and planning 31,818
Property management 54,781
Rent 79,452
Depreciation expense 1,698
Interest expense 39191

Total % 893,793



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of {inancial statements. In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 34 Basic Financial Statement — Management's
Discussion and Aralysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34), CRA is considered a
special purposc government entity that engages in only business type activities. All of the
financial activity of CRA is recorded in an enterprise fund within the proprictary fund group. In
accordance with GASB No, 34 CRA issues a Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assels and a Stavement of Cash Flows. These statements provide
information ahout the financial activities of CRA, as a whole. This annual report also contains
notes to the financial statements which provide additional information that is essential (o a full
understanding of the information provided in the basic financial statements and, required
supplementary information that presents expenses reported in the basic financial statements on a
functional basis in order to help the reader understand expenditures by major functional area.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Asseis presents the assets, liabilities and net assets of CRA as a whole, as of
the end of the fiscal year. The Statement of Net Assets is a point-in-time financial statement. The
purpose of this statement is to present a fiscal snapshot of CRA to the readers of the financial
stalements.  The Statement of Net Assets includes year-end information concerning assets,
liabilities, and net assets. Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.

Net assets are displayed in threc components, invesied in cuapital assets, net of related debt,
resiricted nel assets and unrestricted net assets. Net asscts invested in capital agsets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Net assets are reported as restricted wben there are limitations imposed on their use tbrough
extermal restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or government laws or
regulations of other povernments. Unrestricled net assets represent all other net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related debi.

Over ume, readers of the financial statements will be able to evaluate CRA’s fiscal health
(liquidity and solvency) or financial posttion by analyzing the increases and decreases in net assets
to determine if CRA’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. The reader will also need (o
consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and new or amended
legislation when evaluating the overall financial health of CRA. This statement is also a good
source for readers to determine how much CRA owes to vendors and creditors and the available
assets that can be used to satisly those liabilities.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004

Financial Statements — continued

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Nel Assets reports the financial (revenue and
expenses) activities of CRA and divides it into two categories: Operating activities and Non-
operating activities. Operating activities include all financial activities associated with the
operation of CRA and its related programs. Consequently, all non-operating activities include all
financial activities not related to the operation of CRA. Changes in total net assets as presented on
the Statememt of Net Assets are based on the activity presented in this statement. This slatement
helps to determine whether CRA had sufficient revenues to cover expenses during the year and its
net increase or decrease in net assets based on current year operations.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about CRA’s cash receipts and cash payments
during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net ehanges
in cash resulling from operations, investing, and capital and noncapital financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was cash used?,”
and “what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?” This statement aiso is an
important tool in helping users assess CRA’s ahility to generatc future net cash flows, its ability to
meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing.

Budgetary Highlights

CRA’s annual budget for the year ended December 31, 2004 was approved by the board of
directors. TFor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 CRA incurred $893,793 in actual
expenditures compared to budgeted expenditures of $867,523. CRA’s annual budget for 2005 is
£912.500.

CRA's Financial Activities

The majority of CRA’s funding is the result of rental income and sales proceeds from the properties,
CRA is the owner of certain properties within its project development areas, the majority of CRA’'s
funding is in connection with rental income associated with the properties and proceeds from the sale
of the properties. During 2004 sales proceeds represented 90.5% and rental income represented 3.5%
of CRA’s funding for the year. In addition, CRA receives funding from various Federal, State, and
private grants.

Other Financial Factors

CRA leases office space at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge Massachusetts. The original terms
of the lease agreement state that the lease expires on June 30, 2006, however CRA amended the
lease on July 21, 2004 extending the term for an additional three years until Jupe 30, 2009. Under
the amended lease, rental payments will be reduced to a fixed rate of $51,008 per year
commencing on August 1, 2004. Rent expense for this property for ibe year ended December 31,
2004 was $79,452,



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004

Contacting CRA's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of CRA's finances

and to show the accountability for the funds received. If you have questions about this report or
need additional information, please contact Joseph Tulimieri, Executive Director at CRA.



Daniel Dennis & Company LLP

Certified Public Acconntants

The Board of Directors
Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Independent Auditors’ Report

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
(CRA) as of December 31, 2004, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of

the management of CRA. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accouniing principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall {inancial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as of December 31, 2004, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

As discugsed in Note 9, CRA has implemented a new reporting model, as required by the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, as of Decemher 31, 2004,

The Management Discussion and Analysis i not a required part of the basic finaneial statements
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquires of management regarding the methods of measurcment and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the infonnation and express no opinion on
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April 15, 2005

116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (617) 2629898 Fax (G17) 437.99%7



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2004
Agsets
Cash $3,968,618
Accounts receivable 19,363
Prepaid expenses 20,071
security deposit 7,306
Land inventory 457,352
Property and equipment, net (Note 8) 7,207
Total assets %479,9 17
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 10,499
Deposits held (Note 4) 839,568
Payroli labilities 3,698
Accrued compensation (Note 9) 273,563
Total liabilities 1,127,328
Investment in capital assets (Note 8) 7,207
Unrestricted net assets 3,345,382
Total net assets 3,352,589
‘Total liabilities and net assets § 4;479,917

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assels

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues:
Grants by 8,040
Gain on sale of land 4,010,249
Rental income 174,950
Interesi income 10,409
Other income 274,713
Total revemues 4,478,361
Expenses:
Administrative 587,123
Lepal 99,730
Survey and planning 31,818
Property management 54,781
Rent 79,452
Depreciation expense 1,698
Interest expense 39,191
Total expenses 893,793
Change in net assets 3,584,568
Net assets, beginning of year as previously reported (850,841)
Prior period adjustment (Note 9) 618,862

Net assets, beginning of year as restated

Net agsets, end of year Y

R LA A

See accompanying noies to financial siatements.

(231,979)

3,352,589



Cambridge Redevelopment Anthority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income/(1oss) $3,584,568
Adjustment o reconcile net income 1o net cash

provided by operating activities;

Depreciation expense 1,698
Decrease in recejvables 32,816
Decrease in prepaid expenses 6,709
Decrease in land inventory 420,279
Decrease in accounts payable (16,746)
Decrease in accrued wages (2,941)
Increase in deposits held 835,215
Increase in payroil liabilities 3,698
Increase in accrued compensation 10,937
Decrease in deferred rent (14,308)

Net cash from operating activities 4,861,925
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (3,048)
Net cash from investing activities (5,048}

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of line of credit

(901,202)

Net cash from {inancing activities (901,202)
Net change in cash 3,955,675
Cash at beginning of year 12,943
Cash at end of year $3,968,618
Supplemental disclosure;
Interest paid during the year gmmml%h Eﬁgv}m

See accompanying nofes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes 1o Financial Statements
December 31, 2004

1. Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121B of the Genera} Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law, CRA was issued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956,

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmenta] units.

The following is a summary of CRA’s significant accounting policies:

Financial Statement Presenfation - CRA, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34 - Basic
Financial Statement and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, is considered a special purpose governmental entity that engages in only business
type activities and is not a component unit of another governmental entity. Therefore, the financial
statements arc prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and all of the activity is recorded in
the enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting - The accrual method of accounting is used for all governmental entities that
operate as business type entities. Accordingly revenue is recognized when eamed and capital assets
and expenditures are recorded when received and incurred, respectively. Grants and contributions
are recognized when all eligible requirements are met,

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds
and Other Governmental Emtities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, CRA has elected 1o
apply the provisions of ail relevant pronouncements of Financial Accounting Standards Board
(I’ASB) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivables are presented net of the allowance for doubtfu)
accounts. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on its
past experience. Accounts receivable are writien off when deemed uncollectible, At December
31, 2004, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded, as management considers all
accounts receivable to be fully collectible.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Jiabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and lhabilities at the date of the financial statements, Estimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates,



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2004

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Vacation and Sick Pay - Employees earn vacation and sick time as they provide services to CRA.,
They may accumulate, suhject to cerlain limitations, unused vacation, compensatory, and sick time
eamed and, upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused time eamed.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost or at fair market value at the date of donation.
Capital assets purchased with a cost or value greater than $2,500 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 years for equipment and 7
years for office furnishings.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments ~ CRA’s financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents and accounts receivahle, CRA estimates that the fair value of all financial
instruments at December 31, 2004 does not differ materially from the aggregate carrying vatue of
its financial instruments recorded in the accompanying financial statements,

3. Deposits

The authority’s cash balance is $3,968,618 at December 31, 2004. The authority maintains its cash
in bank deposit and other accounts, which, at times, will exceed federally insured limits. The
authority has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

. Development Deposits

During 2004 CRA reccived a development deposit of $835,215 in accordance with Development
Agreements by and between CRA and Boston Partners Limited Partnership (BPLP). The deposits
are in consideration of and secure BPLI’s right 1o the future purchase of land from CRA. Upon
purchase of the land all paid deposits would be deducted from the agreed-upon purchase price. As
of December 31, 2004, CRA holds a total of $839,568 in development deposits. Future
development deposits are due as follows:

Fiscal
Year Amount
2005 $ 400,000
2006 300,000
2007 100,000

Total $ 800,000



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Nees to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2004

5. Pension Plan

CRA contributes to the Cambridge Retirement System (“System’), a cost sharing, multi-employer
public employee retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative agent for the City
of Cambridge. The system provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory System that is governed
by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General laws (“MGL"),

Plan members are required to contribute to the System, depending on their employment date.
Active members must contribute between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began, Participating employers are required to
pay into the System their share of the remaining system-wide actuarially determined contribution
and plan administration costs. The Commonwealih reimburses the City for a portion of the benefit
payments for cost-of-living increases. The contributions of plan members and the participating
employers are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL. CRA’s contribution 1o the System for the year
ended December 31, 2004 was $39,839, which equaled its required contribution for the year.

. Operating Lease

CRA extended the terms of the original 60-month lease for office space commencing on July, 1
2001 by a period of three years, extending to December 31, 2009. Rent expense for the year
ended December 31, 2004 was $79,452, The minimum payments due over the lease term are as
follows:;

Fiscal
Year Amount
2005 $ 51,008
2006 51,008
2007 51,008
2008 51,008
2009 25,504

Total § 229,536



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Costinued
December 31, 2004

7. Letter of Credit

On January 7, 2002 CRA closed on a Secured Revolving Line of Credit with the Cambridge
Savings Bank in the amount of $500,000. The line of credit matured on May 1, 2003 and carries a
variahle interest rate of one percent over the lender’s base rale. Collateral ineluded in the
agreement consists of a first mortgage on a parcel of land on the corner of Binney Street and Galileo
(alilei Way, in Kendall Square, Cambridge, Massachusetls as well as a first security interest in all
the business assets of CRA. In April 2003, CRA closed on an additional Secured Revolving Line
of Credil with the Cambridge Savings Bank in the amount of $500,000 which earries a variable
interest rate of one and a half’ pereent over the lender’s base rate, In addition to the collateral
included in first agreement, a parcel of land known as Parcel 7 located at the comer of Binney
Strect and the Western Connector of Cambridge, Massachusetls is included as collateral in the
agreement. As of December 31, 2004 the lines of credit were unused.

8. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions  Retirements  Balance

Equipment & furnishings $ 6,000 § 5048 % -~ % 11,048
Less accumulated depreciation 2,143 1,698 - 3,841
Capital assets - net § 3857 § 3350 % - 5 7207

9. Prior Period Adjustment

CRA implemented a new reporting model, discussed in note 1 above, as required by the provisions
of GASDB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments, as of December 31, 2004, The net assets at the
beginning of fiscal year 2003 have been adjusted for the effects of capitalizing fixed assets of
$3,857 and land inventory of $877,631 and recording liabilities for accrued compensation of
$262,626. This amount resulis in an increase of the net assets by $618,862 at December 31, 2004.
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Daniel Dennis & Company LLP

Certéfied Public Accountants

The Board of Directors
Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Independent Auditors' Report

We have andited the accompanying statemnent of nef assets of Cambnidge Redevelopment Authorty
as of December 31, 2005, and the related statements of revenues, cxpenses, and chanpes in net
assets and cash {lows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
managemment, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstalement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cambridge Redcvelopment Authority as of December 31, 20035, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, in conlonmity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management Discussion and Analysis ts not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary inforination required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted prncipally of
inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on

Mﬂgﬂmﬁw&wc@v{dp

May 12, 2006

116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massschuserts 02116 (617) 2629898 Fax (617) 4379937



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2005

Our discussion and analysis of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority’s (CRA) financial
performance provides an overview of CRA’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005, Please read it in conjunction with CRA’s financial statements.

CRA as a Wholc

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1953 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA 15
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121B of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. CRA was issued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956,

Financial Highlights
The following financial highlights are for the fiscal year 2005;

»  (CRA held total assets of $4,320,936 at December 31, 2005 of which $3,763,457 was cash
and investments and $457,355 was land inventory. Total assets were $158,891 less than
2004.

e (CRA held total liabilities of $1,537.657 at December 31, 2005 of which §1,239,568 were
development deposits from Boston Properties Limited Partnership to secure the right to the
future purchase of land from CRA. Liabilities were $410,329 greater than 2004 mostly due
to a $400,000 development deposit received in 2005,

= Total net assels for CRA were $2,783,279 at December 31, 2005 with $8,159 invested in
capital assets and the remaining $2,775,120 unrestricted. Total net assets were $569,310 less
than 2004,

* (CRA earned total revenues of $294,412 for the year ended December 31, 2005, majority of
which was generated from rental income (34%), income on short-term investments (35%),
and funding from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) (30%). Total
revenue for 2005 was 54,183,949 less than 2004 mostly due to a $4,010,249 gain on the sale
of land in 2004,



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2005

Financial Highlights - Continued

» (CRA had a deficit change in net assets of ($569,310) in 2005 compared to positive change of
$3,584,568 in 2004, again mostly due to the $4,010,249 gain on the sale of land in 2004.

» CRA had total expenses of $863,722 for the year ended December 31, 2005, $30,071 less than
2004. The expenses for the years ended December 31, 2005 were applicable to the following

categories:

Administrative § 654,790
Legal 58,171
Survey and planning 52,523
Property management 37,736
Occupancy 57,574
Depreciation expense ' 2,928

Total $ 863722

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statement - Maragement s
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34), CRA 15 considered a
special purpose govemment entity that engages in only business type activities. All of the
financial activity of CRA is recorded in an enterprise fund within the proprietary fund group. In
accordance with GASB No. 34 CRA issues a Statement of Nel Assels, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and a Statemen! of Cash Flows. These statements provide
information about the financial activities of CRA, as a whole. This annual report also contains
notes to the financial statements which provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information provided in the basic {inancial statements.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Ner Assets presents the assets, liabilities and net assets of CRA as a whole, as of
the end of the fiscal year. The Statement of Net Assets is a point-in-time financial statement. The
purpose of this stalement is to present a fiscal snapshot of CRA to the readers of the financial
statements. The Statement of Net Assets includes year-end information conceming assets,
liabilities, and net assets, Net assets represent the difference between assets and labilities.

Net assets are displayed in three components, invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
yestricted net assets and unresiricted nef assets. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outsianding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.



Cambridge Redevelopment Autbority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2005

Financial Statements — Confinued

Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or government Jaws or
regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets represent all other net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Over time, readers of the financial statements will be able to evaluate CRA’s fiscal health
(liquidity and solvency) or financial position by analyzing the increases and decreases in net assets
to determine if CRA’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. The reader will also need to
consider other non-financial factors such as changes in cconomic conditions and new or amended
Jegislation when evaluating the overall financial health of CRA. This statement is also a good
source for readers to determine how much CRA owes to vendors and creditors and the available
assets that can be used 1o satisfy those liabilities.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reports the financial (revenue and
expenses) activities of CRA and divides il into two categories: Operating activities and Non-
operating activities. Operating activities include all financial activities associated with the
operation of CRA and its related programs. Consequently, all non-operating activities include all
financial activities not related to the operation of CRA. Changes in total net assets as presented on
the Statement of Net Assets are based on the activity prescnted in this statement. This statement
helps to determine whether CRA had sufficient revenues 10 cover expenses during the year and its
net increase or decrease in net assets based on current year operations.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about CRA’s cash receipts and cash payments
during the reporting period, The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes
in cash resulting from operations, investing, and capital and roncapital financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was cash used?,”
and “what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?” This statement also is an
important tool in helping users assess CRA’s ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability to
meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing.

CRA's Sources of Income

‘The majority of CRA’s funding is the result of sales proceeds from CRA’s properties, rental income,
interest on investments, and funding from the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). Inearly 2005, the CRA received approval of a $297,600 Neighborhood Initiative Grant from
HUD. The funds will be used to develop open space in the Kendall Square Urban Renewal Area.
Further grants are anticipated to be awarded in 2006.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2005

Other Financial Factors

CRA leases office space at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge Massachusetts. The original terms
of the lease agreement state that the lease expires on June 30, 2006, however CRA amended the
lease on July 21, 2004 extending the term for an additional three years until June 30, 2009. Under
the amended lease, renta] payments will be reduced to a fixed rate of $51,008 per year
commeneing on August 1, 2004, Rent expense for this property for the year ended Decentber 31,
2005 was $49,164.

Contacting CRA's Financial Management
This financial report is designed 1o provide the reader with a general overview of CRA's finances

and to show the accountability for the funds received. If you have questions about this report or
need additional information, please contact Joseph Tulimieri, Executive Director at CRA.
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2005

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash $ 2,764,309

Accounts receivable 64,149

Prepaid expenses 20,513

Investments 9990.148
Total current assets 3,848,119

Noncurrent Assels:

Security deposit 7,306
Land inventory 437,352
Properly and equipment, net (Note 7) 8159
Total noncurrent assets 472,817
Total assets 4,320,956
Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Payroll liabilities $ 6,738

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Development deposits (Note 4) 1,239,568

Accrued compensation 291,351
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,530,519
Total ljabilitles 1,537,657

Net Assets

Investment in capital assets 8,159

Umnrestricted net agsets 2,775,120
Total net assets B 2,783,2‘7_3

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Operating Revenues:
Cirants
Rental income

Total operating revenues

Qperating Expenses:
Administrative
Legal
Survey and planning
Property management
Qcceupancy
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating Revenues:

Interest income
Change in net assets
Net assets, bepinning of year

Net assets, end of vear

h) 88,573
102,000

_ 190373

654,790
58,171
52,523
317,736
57,574

2,928

_ 863,722

(673,149)

103,839
(569,310)

$ 2,785,279

See accompanying notes (o financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from grants and rentals
Receipt from development deposits
Payments to vendors
Payments to employees

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Intcrest
Capital expenditures

Net cash from investing activities
Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

Reconciliation of aperating loss to net cash
Jrom aperating activifies:

Qperating loss

Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to nel
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation expense

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrcase in accounts payable
Increase in development deposits
Increase in payroll liabilitics
Increase in accrued compensation

Net cash from operating activities

5 145,787
400,000
(605,396)

__(24551)

(305,120)

(999,148)
103,839

........ (3,880
__ (899,189)
(1,204,309)
3,968,618

$ 2,764,309

§  (673,149)

2,928

(44,786)
(442)
(10,499)
400,000
3,040
17,788

8 (305,120

See accompanying notes io financial stalements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2005

1. Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121B of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law, CRA was issued a Centificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units,

The following 1s a summary of CRA’s significant accounting policies:

Financial Statemernt Presentaiion - In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Starement No. 34 - Basie Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and dnalvsis
- for State and Local Governments, is considered a special putpose governmenial entity that
engages in only business type activilies and is not a component unit of another govermmental entity,
Therefore, the financial statements are prepared using ihe accrual basis of accounting and all of the
activity is recorded in the enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting - The accrual method of accounting is used for all governmental entities that
operate as business type entities. Accordingly revenue is recognized when earned and capital assets
and expenditures are recorded when received and incurred, respectively, Grants and contributions
are recognized when all eligible requirements are met.

CRA applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict or
contradict GASB pronouncements. 1n addition, CRA applies all applicable FASE Statements and
Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements to its business-lype activities.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivables are presented net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequaey of the allowance is based on its
past experience, Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. At December
31, 2005, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded, as management considers ail
accounts receivable to be fully collectible.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datc of the financial statements, Estimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Staternents - Confinued
December 31, 2005

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Vacation and Sick Pay - Employees earn vacation and sick time as they provide services to CRA.
They may accumulate, subject to certain Jimitations, unused vacation, compensatory, and sick time
earned and, upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused time earned.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost or at fair market value at the date of donation,
Capital assets purchased with a eost ot value greater than $2,500 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the strajght-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 years for computer
equipment, 5 years for other equipment, and 7 years for office furnishings.

Operating Revenue and Expenses - Operating revenue and expenses gencrally result from
redevelopment activities in connection with CRA’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal
operating revenues include federal and state grants, rental income and land sales. Operating
expenses include redevelopment costs, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All other revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

3. Credit Risk

CRA’s cash balance is $2,764,309 at December 31, 2005. CRA maintains its cash in bank
deposits, overnight repurchase agrecments, and other accounts, which, at times, will exceed
federally insured limits. CRA has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant custodial credit risk on cash. As of December 31, 2005, the amount of
$83,155 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Tnvestments of $999,148 at December 31, 2005 consist of certificate of deposits. Interest rates on
these investments range from 2.90% to 4,98%. All certificates of deposits have maturities of one
(1) year or less. Certificates of deposit amounts in excess of the FDIC msured limit of $100,000
are exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized. As of December 31, 2003,
the amount of $243,823 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Development Deposits

During 2005 CRA received a development deposit of $400,000 in accordance with Development
Agreements by and between CRA and Boston Partners Limited Partmership (BPLY). The deposits
are in consideration of and secure BPLP’s right to the future purchase of land from CRA. Upon
purchase of the land all paid deposits would be deducted from the agreed-upon purchase price. As
of December 31, 2005, CRA holds a total of $1,239,568 in development deposits. Future
development deposits of $300,000 and $100,000 are due in 2006 and 2007, respectively.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2005

5. Pension Plan

CRA contributes to the Cambridge Retirement System (“System™), a cost sharing, multi-employer
public employee retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative agent for the City
of Cambridge. The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory System that 1s governed
by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (“MGL").

Plan members are required to contribute to the System, depending on their employment date,
Active members must contribute between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began. Participating employers are required to
pay into the System their share of the remaimng System-wide actuanally determined contribution
and plan administration costs, The Commonwealth reimburses the City for a portion of the benefit
payments for cost-of-living increases. The centributions of plan members and the participating
employers are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL. CRA’s contribution to the System for the year
ended December 31, 2005 was $40,748, which equaled its required contribution for the year.

Operating Lease
CRA extended the terms of the original 60-month lease for office space commencing on July, 1

2001 by a period of three years, to Decernber 31, 2009, Rent expense for the year ended
December 31, 2005 was $49,164. The minimum payments due over the lease term are as {ollows:

Fiscal
Year Amount
2006 § 51,008
2007 51,008
2008 51,008
2009 25,504

Total § 178,528



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes (o Finatcial Statements - Continued
Drecember 31, 2005

7. Capital Assefs

Capital assel activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions  Retirements  Balance

Equipment & furnishings £ 11048 % 3,880 % - § 14,928

Less accumulated depreciation 3,841 2,928 “ 6,769

Capital assets - net £ 7,207 % 052 % - % 8,159
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2006

Our discussion and analysis of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority’s (CRA) financial
performance provides an overview of CRA’s {inancial activities for the fscal year ended
December 31, 2006, Pleage read it in conjunction with CRA’s financial statements.

CRA as a Whole

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operales under the provisions of Chapter 12113 of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law, CRA was issued a Cerlificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956.

YFinancial Highlights
The following financial highlights are for the fiscal year 2006:

v« CRA held total asscls of $3,788,904 at December 31, 2006 of which $3,298,042 was cash
and investments and $457,352 was land inventory. Total asscts were $532,032 less than
2005.

» (CRA held total liabilities of $1,866,546 at December 31, 2006 of which $1,539,568 were
development deposits {rom Boston Properties Limited Partnership to secure the right to the
future purchase of land from CRA. Liabilities were § 328,889 greater than 2005 mostly due
10 a $300,000 development deposit received in 2006.

®  Total net assets for CRA were $1,922,358 at December 31, 2006 with $ 5,231 invested in
capital assets and the remaining $1,917,127 unrestricted. Total net assets were $860,921 less
than 2005,

=  CRA carned total revenues of $186,818 for the year ended December 31, 2006, the majority
of which was generated from rental income (13%), income on short-term investments (77%),
and funding from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HHUD) (10%). Total
revenue for 2006 was § 107,594 legs than 2005 mostly due to a $77,500 decrease in rental
income.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2006

Financiat Highlights - Continued

" CRA had a deficit change in net assets of ($860,921) in 2006 compared to a deficit change of
($569,310) in 2005.

*  CRA had total expenses of $1,047,739 for the year ended December 31, 2006, $184,017 more
than 2005. The expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006 were applicable to the
following cateporics:

Administrative 5 769,412
Legal 44,842
Survey and planning 91,592
Property management 87,957
Occupancy 51,008
Depreciation expense A2

Total £ 1,047,739

TS W e i (i
Using This Annuat Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statement and Management's
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34), CRA is considered a
special purpose governmeni entity that engages in only business type activities, All of the
financial activity of CRA is recorded in an enterprise fund within the proprietary fund group. In
accordance with GASB No. 34 CRA issues a Statement of Nel Assets, Statement of Revenues,
Fxpenses and Changes in Net Assels and a Statement of Cash Flows. These slatements provide
intormation about the financial activities of CRA, as a whole. This annual report also contains
notes to the financial statements which provide additional information that is egsential to a full
understanding of the information provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, liabilitics and net assets of CRA as a whole, as of
the end ot the fiscal year. The Statement of Nel Assets is a point-in-time financial statement. The
purpose of this staternent is lo present a fiseal snapshot of CRA to the readers of the financial
statements.  The Statement of Nef Assets includes year-end information conecrning assets,
liabilities, and net assets. Net agsets represent the difference between assets and labilities.

Net assets are displayed in three components, invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
resiricted nel assets, and unresivicted nef assets. Net assets invested in capilal assels, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, conslruction, or improvement of those assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2006

Financial Statements - Confinted

Net agsets are reported as vestricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or government laws or
regulations of other povernments, Unrestricted net assets represent all other net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assels, net of related debi.

Over time, readers of the financial statements will be able to evaluate CRA’s fiscal health
(liquidity and solvency) or finaneial posilion by analyzing the increases and decrcases in net asscts
to determine if CRA’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. The reader will also need to
consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economie conditions and new or amended
legislation when evaluating the overall financial health of CRA. 'This statement is also a good
source for readers to determine how much CRA owes to vendors and creditors and the available
assets that can be used Lo satisfy those habilities.

The Statement of Revernues, Expenses and Changes in Net dssels reports the financial (revenue and
expenses) activities of CRA and divides it into two categorics: Operating activities and Non-
operating activities.,  Operating activities include all financial activities associated with the
operation of CRA and its related programs. Conscquently, all non-operating activities include all
financial activities not related to the operation of CRA. Changes in {otal net assets as presented on
the Statement of Net Assels arc based on the activity presented in this statement. This statement
helps 1o determine whether CRA had sufficient revenues to cover expenses during the year and its
nel increase or decrease n net assets based on current year operations.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about CRA's cash receipts and cash payments
during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes
in cash resulling from operations, investing, and capital and roncapital financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was cash used?.”
and “what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?” This statement also is an
important tool in helping users assess CRA’s ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability to
meet its obligations as they come due, and its need {or external financing.

CRA's Sowrces of Income

The majority of CRA’s funding is the result of sales proceeds from CRA’s properties, rental income,
interest on investments, and funding from the U5 Department of Housing and Urban Development
(FUD,
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Other Financial Factors

CRA leases office space at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge Massachusetts, The original terms
of the lease agrecment state that the lease expires on June 30, 2006, however CRA amended the
lease on July 21, 2004 extending the term for an additional three years until June 30, 2009, Under
the amended leasc, rental payments will be reduced to a fixed rate of §51,008 per year
commencing an August 1, 2004. Rent expense for this property for the year ended December 31,
2006 was $51,008, ‘

Contacting CRA's IYinancial Management
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of CRA's finances

and to show the accountability for the funds recetved. I you have questions about this report or
need additional information, please contact Joseph Tulimieri, Executive Director al CRA.
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Certified Public Accotnteants

The Board of Directors
Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Inclependent Auditors’ Report

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as
of December 31, 2006, and the related stalements of revenues, expenses, and changes tn net asacts and
cash flows for the year then ended. These Nnancial statements are the responsibility of management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We condueted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally sccepted in the United States
of America., Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audil includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
algso meludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that cur audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial posttion of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as of December 31, 2006, and the changes
in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of
management rcgarding the methods of measuremenl and presentation of the supplementary
information. Towever, we did not audil the information and express no epinion on it.

&fw/{) Qoims . &N@rﬁl‘g /4 f

May 12, 2007

V16 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (617) 2629898 Fax (617) 4379937



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Statement of Nct Assets
December 31, 2006

Assels

Current Assels:
Cash

Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Security deposit
Land inventory

Property and equipment, net (Note 7)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liubilities

Current Liabilities.
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilitics

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Development deposits (Note 4)
Accrued compensation

Total noncurrent liabililies
Total liabilities
Net Assels

Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

b 1,336,135
20,973

1,961,907

7,306
457,352
5,231

3,788,904

1,539,568
304,965

1,844,533

$ 1,922,358

See accomparnying notes 1o financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Asscts
For the Year Iinded December 31, 2000

Operating Revenues.
Civants
Rental income

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses.
Administrative
Legal
. :
Survey and planning
Property management
Oceupancy
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating Revenues:

Interest income
Change in net assets
Net assets, bepinning of year

Met assets, cnd of year

§ 17,751

24,500

769,412
44 842
91,592
87,957
51,008

2,928

1,047,739

{1,005,488)

144,567
(860,921)
2,783,279

b 1,922,358

T TR AL AT

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from grants and rentals
Receipt from development deposits
Payments to vendors
Payments to employees

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Interest

Net cash from investing activities
Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

Reconciliation af operaiing loss 1o nel cash
Jrom operating activities:

Operating loss

Adjustment to reeoncile operating loss to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation expense

Change in assels and habilities:
Decrease in reccivables
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in development deposits
Decrease in payrotl liabilitics
Increase in accrued compensation

Net cash from operating activitieg

$ 106,400
300,000
(708,593)

e (099,982)

(962,759)
144,567

(818,192)
(1,428,174)
_ 2,764,309

b 1,336,135

TR e S I ST M e

§ (1,005,488)

2,928

64,149
(460)

15,460

300,000
(185)

13,614

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006

1. Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA s
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 12113 of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law., CRA was issued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretury of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956.

Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies

The accounting policies of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority conform (o accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to govermmental units.

The following is a summary of CRA’s significant accounting policies:

Financial Statement Presentation - In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statement and Management's Discussion and Analysis
Jor State and Local Governments, CRA is considered a special purpose governmental entity that
engages in only business type activities and is not a component unit of another govemmental entity.
Therefore, the financial statements ate prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and all of the
activity is recorded in the enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting - The accrual method of accounting is used for all govemmental entitics that
operate as business type entities. Accordingly revenue is recognized when earned and capital assets
and expenditures are recorded when received and incurred, respectively. Grants and contributions
are recognized when all eligible requirements are met.

CRA applics all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements contlict or
contradict GASB pronouncements. In addition, CRA applies all applicable FASE Statements and
Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradiet
GASB pronouncements (o its business-type activities,

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivables are presented net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on its
past experience. Accounts receivable arc written off when deemed uncollectible, At December
31, 2006, no accounts receivable are outstanding,.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principies generally accepted in the United States of Amcrica requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Istimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual resulls
could differ from those estimates.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2006

2. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies - Continued

Vacation and Sick Fay - Employees carn vacation and sick time as they provide services to CRA.
They may aceumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation, compensatory, and sick time
carned and, upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused time earned,
Termination 18 defined as foss of employment due to lay off or elimination of position withont fault
on the employce’s part.

Capital Assels - Capital assets are recorded at cost or at Tair market value at the date of donation.
Capital assets purchased with a cost or value greater than $1,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis using estimated usetul lives of 3 years for computer
equipment, 5 years for other equipment, and 7 years for office furnishings.

Operating Revernue and Expenses - Operating revenue and expenses generally result from
redevelopment activities in connection with CRA’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal
operating revenues include federal and state grants, rental income and land sales. Operating
expenses include redevelopment costs, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All other revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses,

3. Credit Risk

CRA’s cash balance is $1,336,135 at December 31, 2006, CRA maintains its cash in bank
deposits, overnight repurchase agrecments, and other accounts, which, at times, will exceed
federally insured himits, CRA has not experienced any losses m such accounts and believes it 1s not
exposed to any significant custodial eredit risk on cash. As of Deeember 31, 2006, the amount of
$75,111 was uminsured and uncollateralized,

Investments of $1,961,907 at December 31, 2006 consist of certificate of deposits and {reasury
bills. Interest rates on these investments range from 2.90% to 4.98%. All certificates of deposits
have malurities of one (1) year or less. Cerlificates ol deposit amounts in excess of the FDIC
insured linit of $100,000 are exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.
As of December 31, 2006, the amount of $256,934 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

4. Development Deposils

During 2006 CRA received a development deposit of $300,000 in accordance with Development
Agreements by and between CRA and Boston Partners Limited Partnership (BPLP). The deposits
are in consideration of and secure BPLP’s right to the {uture purchase of land from CRA. Upon
purchase of the land all paid deposits would be dedueted from the agreed-upon purchase price. As
of December 31, 2006, CRA holds a total of $1,539,568 in development deposits. A future
development deposit of $100,000 is due in 2007.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 2006

5. Pension Plan

5 CRA contribules to the Cambridge Retirement Systern (“System™), a cost sharing, multi-employer
public employee retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative agent for the City
of Cambridge (City). The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
: members and beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory Systern
' that is govemned by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (“MGL”).

; Plan members are required to contribute to the System, depending on their employment date.
Active members must contribute between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
. depending on the date upon which their membership began. Participating employers are required o

r pay into the System their share of the remaining System-wide actuarially determined contribution

and plan administration costs. The Commonwealth reimburses the City for a portion of the benefit
[ payments for cost-of-living increases. The contributions of plan members and the participating
employers are governcd by Chapter 32 of the MGL., CRA’s contributton o the System for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was $41,485, which equaled its required contribuiion for the year.

6. Operating Lease
CRA extended the terms of the original 60-month lease for office space commeneing on July, |

2001 by a period of three years, to June 30, 2009. Rent expense for the year ended December 31,
2006 was $51,008, The minimum payments duc over the lease term are as follows:

Fiscal
; Year Amount
" 2007 51,008
P 2008 51,008
. 2009 25,504

Total $ 127,520



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continuved
December 31, 2006
7. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balunce Additions  Refirements  Balonce

Equipment & furnishings $ 14928 % - § - 14,928
Less accumulated depreciation 6,769 2,928 - 9,697
Capital assels - net § 8159 § (2928) § - 5 5,231

8. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

Under City collective bargaining agreements, CRA provides health insurance plan benefits to all
retirees and their beneficiaries of CRA. "The plan calls for contributions of 15% by the retiree
and 85% by CRA of the annual insurance premiums. Currently, funding for the plan is on a pay-
as-you-go basis. For the year ended December 31, 2006, CRA paid $80,138 in health insurance
premiums on behalf of @ retirees under the plan.
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2007

Our discussion and analysis of Cambridpe Redevelopment Authority’s (CRA) financial
performance provides an overview of CRA’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007, Please read it in conjunction with CRA’s financial stalements.

CRA as a Whotle

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 1o administer and plan
urban renewal and other community developinent projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 1218 of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law, CRA was issued a Certificate of
Orgamzation by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956,

Financial Highlights
The following financial highlights are for the fiscal year 2007:

*  (CRA held total assets of $3,434,375 at December 31, 2007 of which $2,944,196 was cash
and investments and $457,352 was land inventory. Total assets were $354,529 less than
2006.

» CRA held total liabilities of $2,546,963 at December 31, 2007 of which $2,180,581 were
development deposits from Boston Properties Limiled Partnership to secure the right to the
future purchase of land from CRA. Liabilities were $680,417 greater than 2006 mostly due
to a $641,013 development deposit received in 2007,

.  Total net asscts for CRA were $887,412 al December 31, 2007 with $2,348 invested in
capital assets and the remaining $885,064 unrestricled. Total net assets were $1,034,946 less
than 2006.

*  CRA earned total revenues of $155,328 for the year ended December 31, 2007, the majority
of which was generated from rental income (4%), income on short-term investments (83%),
and reimbursed expenses (13%). Total revenue for 2007 was $31,490 less than 2006 mostly
due to $18,500 decrease in rental income and $13,613 decrease in interest income,



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2007

Financial Highlights - Continued

» CRA had a deficit change in net assets of $1,034,946 in 2007 compared to a deficit change of
$860,921 in 2006,

* CRA had total expenses of $1,190,274 for the year ended December 31, 2007, $142,535 more
than 2006. The expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were applicable to the
{ollowing categories:

Administrative § 810,998
Legal 49,205
Survey and planning 245,158
Property management 30,977
Occupancy 51,008
Depreciation expense 2,928

Tota 3 1,190,274

Using This Annual Report

T'his annual report consists of a series of financial stalements, In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statement and Management's
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34), CRA is considered a
special purposc government entity that enpages in only business type activities. All of the
financial activity of CRA is recorded in an enterprise fund within the proprietary fund group. In
accordance with GASB No. 34 CRA issucs a Statement of Net Assets, Stalement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and a Statement of Cash Flows. These statements provide
information about the financial activities of CRA, as a whole. This annual report also contains
notes to the financial statements which provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of ithe information provided in the basic financial statements,

Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, liabilities and net agsets of CRA as a whole, as of
the end of the fiscal year, The Statement of Nef Assels is a point-in-time financial statement, The
purpose of this statement is to present a fiscal snapshot of CRA to the readers of the [inancial
statements.  The Sratement of Net Assets includes year-end information concerning assets,
liabilitics, and net assets, Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.

Net assels are displayed in three components, invested in capital assets, net of related debi,
restricted net assets, and unrestricted nef assels. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets,
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2007

Financial Statements — Continued

Net assels are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or governmentl laws or
regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets represent all other net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Over time, readers of the financial statements will be able to evalvate CRA’s fiscal health
(liquidity and solvency) or financial position by analyzing the increases and decreases in net assets
to determine if CRA’s {inancial health is improving or deteriorating, The reader will also need to
consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and new or amended
legisiation when evaluating the overall financial health of CRA. This statement is also a good
source for readers to determine how much CRA owes to vendors and creditors and the available
assels that can be used to satisty those liabilities.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reports the financial (revenue and
expenses) activities of CRA and divides it into two calegories: Operating activiiies and Non-
operating activities. Qperating activities include all financial activities associated with the
operation of CRA and its related programs. Consequently, all non-operating activities inciude all
financial activitics not related to the operation of CRA. Changes in total net assets as presented on
the Statement of Net Assers are based on the activity presented in this statement. This statement
helps to determine whether CRA had sufficient revenuces to cover expenses during the year and its
net increase or decrease in net assets based on current year operations,

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about CRA’s cash receipts and cash payments
during the reporting period. The sialement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes
in cash resulting from operations, investing, and capital and noncapital financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was cash used?,”
and “what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?” This statement also is an
important tool in helping users assess CRA’s ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability (0
meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing.

CRA's Spurces of Income

The majority of CRA’s funding is the result of sales proceeds trom CRA’s propertics, rentat income,
interest on investments, and funding from the U.8 Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD).



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Manapgement Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2007

Other Financial Factors

CRA leases office space at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge Magsachusetts. The original terms
of the leage agreement state that the lease expires on June 30, 2006, however CRA amended the
lease on July 21, 2004 extending the term for an additional three years until June 30, 2009, Under
the amended lease, rental payments will be reduced to o fixed rate of $51,008 per year
commencing on Aupust 1, 2004, Rent expense for this property for the year ended December 31,
2007 was $51,008.

Contacting CRA's Financiai Management
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a peneral overview of CRA's finances

and to show the accountability for the funds received. If you have questions about this report or
need additional information, please contact Joseph Tulimieri, Executive Director at CRA.



Daniel Dennis & Company LLP

Certified Public Acconntants

The Board of Directors
Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Independent Auditors' Report

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as
of December 31, 2007, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. ‘These financial statements are the responsibility of management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statermnents. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimales made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenial respects, the
financial position of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as of December 31, 2007, and the changes
in ity net asseis and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity wilh accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management Discussion and Analysis 15 not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Ametica. We have applied cerlain limited procedures, which consisted princtpally of inquires of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it,

vb‘?wmpﬂimw / @6@&44?

June 10, 2008

116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (G17) 2629898 Fax (617) 4579937



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2007

Assels

C'urrent Assets:

Cash $ 748,453

Accounts receivable 440

Prepaid expenses 22,733

[nvestiments 2,195,743
Total current assets 2,967,369

Noncurrent Assets:

Sccurity deposit 7,306

Land inventory 457,352

Property and equipment, net (Note 7) 2,348
Total noncurrent assets ___467,006
Total assets 3,434,375

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 9,965

Payroll liabilities 1,683
Total current liabilities 11,648

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Development deposits (Nole 4) 2,180,581

Accrued compensation 354,734
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,535,315
Total Habilities 2,546,963

Ner Aysets

Investment in capital assets 2,348

Unrestricted net assets 885,064
Total net assets § 887412

See¢ accompanying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Stalemnent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Operating Reventes:
Reimbursed expenses
Rental income

Total operating revenues

Operating Lxpenses.
Administrative
Legal
Survey and planning
Property management
Occupancy
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest income

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net agsets, end of year

810,598
49,205
245,158
30,977
51,008
2,928

(1,163,900)

128,954
(1,034,946)
1,922,358

See accompanying notes (o financiol statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Cash IFlows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from grants and rentals $ 25934
Receipt from development deposits 641,013
Payments to vendors (878,068)
Payments to employees _(271,634)
Net cash from operating activities (482,755)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (233,881)
Intcrest 128,954
Net cash from investing activities (104,927
Net chanpe in cash (587,682)
Cash at beginning of year _ 1,336,135
Cash at end of year $ 748,453

Reconciliation of operating loss to nel cash
Sfrom operating activities:
Operating loss $(1,163,900)
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net
cash from operating activities:

Depreciation expense 2,928
Chanpe in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables (440)
Increase in prepaid expenses (1,760)
Increase in accounts payable (5,4935)
Increase in development deposits 641,013
Decrease in payroll liabilities (4,870)
Increase in acerued compensation 49769
Net cash from operating activities (482,755

FotiE e R e )

See accompanying notes to financial starements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
MNotes to Financial Statements
Decemnber 31, 2007

L. Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban rencwal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 1218 of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. CRA was issued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956.

. Stunmary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority conform to accounting principles
pencrally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units.

The following is a summary of CRA’s significant accounting policies:

Financial Statement Presentation - In accordance with Govermmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statement and Management's Discussion and Analysis
Jor State and Local Governments, CRA is considered a special purpose governmental entity that
engages in only business type activities and is not a component unit of another governmental entity.
Thercfore, the financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and all of the
activity is recorded in the enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting - The accrual method of accounting is used for all governmental entities that
operate as business type entitics. Accordingly revenue is recognized when earned and capital asscts
and expenditures are recorded when received and incurred, respectively. Grants and contributions
arc recopnized when all eligible requirements are met.

CRA applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issucd on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncemennts conflict or
contradict GASB pronouncements. In addition, CRA applies all applicable FASD Statements and
Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements to its business-type activities.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts reccivable are presented net of the allowance for doubtfu]
accounts. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on its
past experience. Accounts receivable are written off when decmed uncollectible. At December
31, 2007, outstanding accounts receivable was § 440.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principies generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities and disclosure
of continpent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements. Lstimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results
could differ from those estimates.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
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2, Swmmary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

3.

Vacarion and Sick Pay - Employees eam vacation and sick time as they provide scrvices to CRA.
They may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation, compensatory, and sick time
eamed and, upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused time earned.
Termination is defined as loss of employment due to lay off or elimination of position without fault
on the employee’s part.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost or at fair market value at the date of donation,
Capital assets purchased with a cost or value greater than $1,000 are capitalized, Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 ycars for computer
equipment, 5 years for other equipment, and 7 years for office furnishings.

Operating Revenue and Expenses - Operating revenue and expenses generally result from
redevelopment activities in connection with CRA’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal
operating revenues include {ederal and state grants, rental income and land sales. Operating
expenses include redevelopment costs, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
Al other revenuc and expenses not meeting this definition arc reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses.

Credit Risk

CRA'’s cash balance is $748,453 at December 31, 2007. CRA maintains its cash in bank deposits,
overnight repurchase agreements, and other accounts, which, al times, will exceed federally insured
limits. CRA has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed (o any
significant custodial credit risk on cash. As of December 31, 2007, the amount of $75,023 was
uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments of $2,195,743 at December 31, 2007 consist of certificate of deposits and tieasury
bills. Interest rates on these investments range from 2.90% to 5.25%. All certificates of deposits
have maturities of one (1) year or less. Certificates of deposit amounts in excess of the FDIC
insured limit of $100,000 are exposed (o custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.
As of December 31, 2007, the amount of $425,014 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Development Deposits

During 2007 CRA received a development deposit of $641,013 in accordance with Development
Agreements by and between CRA and Boston Partners Limited Partnership (BPLP). The deposits
are in consideration of and secure BPLF's right to the future purchase of land from CRA. Upon
purchase of the land all paid deposits would be deducted from the agreed-upon purchase price. As
of December 31, 2007, CRA holds a total of $2,180,581 in development deposits.
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Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements — Continved
December 31, 2007

Pension Plan

CRA contributes to the Cambridge Retirement System (“System’™), a cost sharing, multi-employer
public employce retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative agent for the City
of Cambridge (City). The System provides tetirement, disability, and death bencfits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory System
that is governed by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws ("MGL”™).

Plan members are required to contribute 10 the System, depending on their employment date.
Active members must contribute between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began. Participating employers are required (o
pay into the System their share of the remaining System-wide actuarially determined contribution
and plan administration costs. The Commonwealth reimburses the City for a portion of the benefit
payments for cost-of-living increases. The contributions of plan members and the participating
employers are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL. CRA’s contribution to the System for the year
ended December 31, 2007 was $43,706 which equaled its required contribution for the year.

Operating Lease
CRRA extended the terms of the original 60-month lease for office space commencing on July, 1

2001 by a period of three years, to June 30, 2009. Rent expense for the year ended December 31,
2007 was $51,008. The minimum payments due over the lease term are as follows:

Fiseal

Year Amount
2008 $ 51,008
2009 25,504
Total $ 76,512

Capital Assels

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 was as follows:

Beginning Lnding

Balance  Additions  Retirements  Balance
Equipment & furnishings § 14928 § 45 % - 5 14,973
Less accumulated depreciation 0,697 2,928 - 12,625

Capital assets - net $§ 5231 % (2,883) % - % 2,34-%_




Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Confinued
December 31, 2007

8. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefity

Under City collective bargaining agreements, CRA provides health insurance plan benefits to all
retirees and their beneficiaries of CRA, The plan calls for contributions of 15% by the retirec
and 85% by CRA of the annual insurance premiums. Currently, funding for the plan is on a pay-
as-you-go basis. For the year ended December 31, 2007, CRA paid $83,873 in health insuranee
ﬁ premiums on behalf of 9 retirees under the plan.
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Cambridge Redevelopment Aunthority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008

Our discussion and analysis of Cambridpe Redevelopment Authority’s (CRA) financial
performance provides an overview of CRA’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008, Please read it in conjunction with CRA’s financial statements.

CRA a5 & Whole

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
utban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge, CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 1218 of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. CRA was issucd a Certificate of
Orpanization by the Secretary of the Commaonwealth on November 20, 1956,

Financial Highlights
The following financial highlights are for the fiscal year 2008:

s (CRA held total assets of $2,571,844 at December 31, 2008 of which $2,087,990 was cash
and investments and $457,352 was land inventory. Total asscts were $862,531 less than
2007,

 (CRA held total Habilities of $2,049.649 at December 31, 2008 of which 52,180,581 were
developmient deposits from Boston Properties Limiled Partnership to secure the right to the
future purchase of land frorm CRA. Liabilities were $102,686 greater than 2007 mostly due
o a $62,530 in insurance proceeds received tn 2008 owed o Boston Properties Limited
Partnership to finance repairs and maintenance on a property mutually owned by the two
enlities.

»  Total net assets for CRA were a deficit of $77,808 at December 31, 2008 with $515 invested
in capital asscts and an unrestricted deficit of $78.320. Total net assets were $9635,217 less
than 2007.

*  CRA eamned total revenues of $94,291 for the year ended December 31, 2008, the majority of
which wag penerated from income on short-term investments (91%). Total revenue for 2008
was $61,037 less than 2007 mostly duc to a $43,309 decrease in inlerest income resulting
from withdrawals on investments to finance operating activities and lower interest rates
pertaining to certificates of deposit.



Cambridge Redevelopment Aunthority
Management Discussion and Analysis
Decermnber 31, 2008

Financial Highlights - Continued

» CRA had a deficit change in net asscts of $965,217 fn 2007 compared to a deficit change of
$1,034,946 in 2007,

v (RA had total expenses of $1,059,508 for the year ended December 31, 2008, $130,766 less
than 2007. The expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were applicable lo the
following categories:

Administrative $ 776,211
Legal 46,710
Survey and planning 127,111
Property management 50,633
Occupancy 51.008
Depreciation expense 1,833

Total $ 1,059,508

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a scries of financial stalements. In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Stutement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34), CRA is considered a
special purpose government entity that engages in only business type activities. All of the
financial activity of CRA is recorded in an enterprise {und within the proprietary fund group. In
accordance with GASBH No. 34, CRA issues a Statement of Nel Assets, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and a Statement of Cash Flows. These statements provide
information about the financial activities of CRA, as a whole. This annual repott also contains
notes 1o the financial statements which provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets presents the asscts, liabilities and net assets of CRA as a whole, as of
the end of the fiscal year, The Starement of Nel Assels is a point-in-time {inancial statement. The
purpose of this statement is to present a fiscal snapshot of CRA to the readers of the financial
statements.  The Srtatement of Net Assety includes year-end information concerning assets,
fiabilitics, and net assets, Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities,

Net assels are displayed in three components, invesred in capital assets, net of related debt,
resiricted net assefs, and wnresiricted net assets. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, nel of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
batances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008

Financial Statements — Continued

Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or government laws or
repulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets represent all other net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related deb!.

Over time, readers of the financial statements will be able to evaluate CRA’s fiscal health
(liquidity and solvency) or financial position by analyzing the increases and decreases in net assets
to determine if CRA’s financial health is improving or deteriorating, The reader will also need to
consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and new or amended
legislation when evaluating the overall financial health of CRA. This statement is also a good
source for readers to determine how much CRA owes to vendors and creditors and the avatlable
assets that can be used to satisfy those liabiltties.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reports the financial (revenue and
expenses) activities of CRA and divides it into two categories: Operating activities and Non-
aperating activities.  Operating activities include all finaneial activities associated with the
operation of CRA and its related programs. Consequently, all non-operating activities include all
financial activities not related Lo the operation of CRA. Changes in total net assets as presented on
the Statement of Nel Assets are based on the activity presented in this statement. This statement
helps to determine whether CRA had sufficient revenues to cover expenses during the year and its
net increase or decrease in net assets based on current ycar operations.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about CRA’s cash receipts and cash payments
during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes
in cash resulting from operations. investing, and capital and noncapital financing aclivities and
provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was cash used?.”
and “what was the chanpe in cash balance during the reporting period?” This statement also is an
important ool in helping users assess CRA’s ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability to
meet its oblipations as they come due, and its need for external financing.

CRA's Sources of Income

The majority of CRA’s funding is the result of sales proceeds from CRA’s properties, rental income,
interest on investments, and funding from the U.8 Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUTD).



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008

Other Finuncial Factors

CRA leases office space at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge Massachuselts. The original terms
of the tease apreement state that the lease expires on June 30, 2006, however CRA amended the
lease on July 21, 2004 extending the term for an additional three years until June 30, 2009, Under
the amended lease, rental payments will be a fixed rate of $51,008 per year commencing on
Aungust 1, 2004, Rent expense for this property for the year ended December 31, 2008 was
$51,008.

Contacting CRA's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of CRA's finances

and to show the accountability for the funds received. 1f you have questions about this report or
need additional information, please contact Joseph Tulimieri, Executive Director at CRA.



Daniel Dennis & Company LLP

Certified Public Accountants

The Board of Directors
Cambridge Redevelopment Authority

Independent Auvditors' Report

We have audited the accompanying statement of net asscts of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as
of December 31, 2008, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. These (inancial statements are the responsibility of management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence suppotting the amounts and disclosures in the linancial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respeets, the
financial position of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as of December 31, 2008, and the changes
in its nel assets and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
penerally accepted in the United States of America,

The Management Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.  We have applied certain Hmited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of
management regarding  the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

&WJQM w Low S a4

June (0, 2009

116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachuserts 02116 (617 2629898 Fax (617) 4370037



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Net Assety
December 31, 2008

Asyels

Currenl Assels,

Cash § 348,185

Accounts receivable 691

Prepaid expenses 17,990

Investments 1,739,805
Total current assecls 2,106,671

Noncurrent Assets:

Securily deposit 7,306

L.and inventory 457,352

Property and equipment, net 2 )
Total noncurrent assets 465,173
Tolal assets 2,571,844

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 21,740

Payroll liabilities 089

Other liabilities 62,530
Total current liabilities 85,259

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Development deposits 2,180,581

Accrued compensation 383,809
Total noncurrent liabilitics 2,564,390
Total liabilitics 2,649,649

Net Assers

fuvestment in capital assets 515

Unrestricted net assels (78,320}

Total net asscts

$ (77,805)

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Agsets
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Operaling Revenues:
Reimbursed expenscs
Rental income

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses;
Administrative
l.egal
Swrvey and planning
Property management
Occupancy
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating, loss

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest income

Change in nel assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

776,211
46,710
127,111
56,633
51,008
1,833

(1,050,862)

See accompanying noles (o financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
[*or the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from grants and rentals b 8,395
Paymems to vendors (620,716)
Payments to employees (329,530}
Net cash from operating activities _(941,851)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net proceeds from investment withdrawals 479,053
Insurance proceeds 62,530
Net cash from investing activities 41,583
Net change in cash (400,268)
Cash at beginning of year 748433

Casly at end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to nel cash
[rom aperating activities.

$ 348,185

Operating loss $(1,050,862)
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss Lo net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,833
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables (251)
Decrease in prepaid expenses 4,743
Increase in accounts payable 11,775
Increase in other Habilities 62,530
Decrease in payroll liabilities (694)
Increase in accrued compensation 29075

Net cash {rom operating activities

b (941.851)

T

Kee accompanying notes lo financial statements,



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes o Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established m 1955 to administer and plan

urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA i3
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121B of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. CRA was issued a Certificate of
Orpanization by the Sccretary of the Commonweslth on Novernber 20, 1956.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Cambridpe Redevelopment Authority conform to accounting principles
peneraily accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units,

The following is a summary of CRA’s significant accounting policies:

Financial Sterement Presentation - In aceordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34 - Busic Financial Starements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Jor State and Loced Governments, CRA is considered a special purpose governmental entity that
engages in only business type activities and is not a component unit of another govermental entity.
Theretore, the financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and all of the
activity 15 recorded in the enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting - The accrual method of accounting is used for all governmental entities that
operate as business type entities. Accordingly revenue is recognized when earned and capital assets
and expenditures are recorded when reeeived and incurred, respectively, Grants and contributions
are recognized when all eligible requirements are met.

CRA applics all GASD pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or belore Noverber 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict or
contradict GASB pronouncements. In addition, CRA applies all applicable FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued afler November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict
(GASB pronouncements to its business-type activities.

Accounts Receivahle - Accounts receivable are presented net of the allowance for doubtful
accounis. Manapement’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on itg
past experience. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible,

Use of Estimates - The prepatation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America reguires management to make
estimates and assumptions that afTect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the financial stalements. Estimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
Pecember 31, 2008

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Conlinued

Vacation and Sick Pay - Employees carn vacation and sick time as they provide services 1o CRA,
They may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation, compensatory, and sick time
earned and, upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused time eamed.
Termination is defined as loss of employment due to lay off or elimination of position without fault
on the employee’s part.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost or at fair market value at the date of donation.
Capital assets purchased with a cost or value greater than $1,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 years for computer
equipment, 3 years for other equipment, and 7 years for office furnishings.

Operating Revenue and Expensey - Operating revenue and expenses generally resull from
redevelopment activities in connection with CRA’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal
operating revenues include federal and state prants, rental income and land sales, Operating
expenses include redevelopment costs, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All other revenue and expenses nol meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses,

3. Credit Risk

CRA’s cash balance is $348,185 at December 31, 2008, CRA maintains its cash in bank deposits
and other accounts, which, at times, will exceed federally insured Hmits. CRA has not experienced
any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant custodial credit risk on
cash. As of December 31, 2008, the amount of $90,870 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments of $1,739,805 at December 31, 2008 consist of certificate of deposits and treasury
bills. Interest rates on these investments range from 1.50% to 3.82%. All certificates of deposits
have maturities of one (1) vear or less. Certificates of deposit amounts in excess of the FDIC
insured Hmit of $250,000 are exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.
As of December 33, 2008, all investiments were insured and collateralized.

Development Deposity

CRA receives development deposits in accordance with Developrnent Agreements by and between
CRA and Boston Partners Limited Partnership (BPLP). The deposits are in consideration of and
secure BPLIS right to the future purchase of land from CRA. Upon purchase of the land all paid
deposits would be deducted from the agreed-upon purchase price. As of December 31, 2008, CRA
holds a total of $2,180,581 in development deposits.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
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5. Pension Plan

CRA contributes to the Cambridge Retirement System (“System™), a cost sharing, multi-employer
public employee retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative apent for the City
of Cambridpe (City). The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory System
that i5 governed by Chapter 32 of the Magsachusetts General Laws (“MGL™).

Plan members are required to coniribute to the System, depending on their employment date,
Active members must contribule between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began. Participating, employers are required to
pay into the System their share of the remaining System-wide actuarially determined contribution
and plan administration costs. The Commonwealth reimburses the City for a portion of the benefit
payments for cost-of-living increases.  The contributions of plan members and the participating
employers are poverned by Chapter 32 of the MGL. CRA’s contribution to the System for the year
ended December 31, 2008 was $40,723 which equaled its required contribution for the vear.

6. Operating Lease

CRA extended the terms of the original 60-month lease for office gpace commencing on July, 1
2001 by a period of three years, to June 30, 2009, Rent expense for the year ended December 31,
2008 was §51,008. The minimum payments due over the lease term are as {ollows:

Fiscal
Year Amouwm
2009 _.23,504
Totl $ 25504

7. Capital Assets

Capital asset activily for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions  Retirements  Balance

Equipment & furnishings $ 14973 % . - § 14973

L.ess accumutated depreciation 12,625 1,833 . 14,458

Capital assets - net $ 2,348 % (1,833) § - % 515




Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Noies 1o Financial Statements - Confinued
December 31, 2008

8. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

CRA provides health insurance plan benefits to all retirees and their beneficiaries of CRA. The
plan calls for contributions of 15% by the retiree and 85% by CRA of the annual insurance
premiums. Currently, funding for the plan is on a pay-as-you-go basis. Ior the year ended
December 31, 2008, CRA paid $80,110 in health insurance premiums on behalf of 9 retirees
under the plan.
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Our discussion and analysis of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority’s (CRA) financial
performance provides an overview of CRA's financial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009. Please read it in conjunction with CRA’s financial statements.

CRA as a Whole

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authority (CRA) was established in 1935 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge. CRA is
authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 1218 of the General Laws, as amended,
which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law, CRA was issued a Certificate of
Organization by the Secretary of the Comimonwealth on November 20, 1956.

Financial Highlights
The following financial highlights are for the fiscal year 2009:

s (CRA held total assets of $5,178,538 at December 31, 2009 of which $4,898,940 was cash
and investments and $249.725 was land inventory. Total assets imcreased by $2,606,694
from 2008,

* CRA held total Habilities of $912,038 at December 31, 2009 of which $339,568 were
development deposits from Boston Properties Limited Partnership to secure the right to the
future purchase of land from CRA. Liabilities were $1,737,611 less than 2008 mostly due to
a sale of land to Boston Properties in 2009, The developmental deposit lability decreased and
was applied to the purchase of the parcels of land,

v Total net assets for CRA were $4,266,500 at December 31, 2009 with $70 invested in capital
asscis and unrestricted net assets of $4,266,430. Total net assets increased by 54,344,820
from 2008 mostly due to the sale of land parcels to Boston Properties.

» CRA earned total operating revenues of $5,451,851 for the year ended December 31, 2009,
the majority of which was generated from the sale of land parcels. Total revenue for 2009
was $5,357,560 morc than 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Highlights - Continued

= (CRA had tolal operating expenses of $1,139,603 for the year ended December 31, 2009,
$80,095 more than 2008. The increase was mostly due to increases in accounting, lepal, and
consulting fees due to the sale of the land parcels to Boston Properties. The expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2009 were applicable to the following categories:

Administrative $ 888,362
Lepal 100,287
Survey and planning 58,927
Property management 38,715
Qccupancy 52,868
Depreciation expense 444

Total $ 1,139,603

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. In accordance with Govermmental
Accounting Standardy Board Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements and Monagement's
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34), CRA is considered a
special purpose government entity that engages in only business type activities. All of the
financial activity of CRA is recorded in an enterprise fund within the proprietary fund group. In
accordance with GASB No. 34, CRA issues a Statement of Nel Assets, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Ner Assets and a Statement of Cash Flows. These statements provide
information about the financial activities of CRA, as a whole. This annual report also contains
notes to the financial statements which provide additional information that is essential to a full
undersianding of the information provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, labilities and net assets of CRA as a whole, as of
the end of the fiscal year. The Starement of Net Assets is a point-in-time Rnancial statement, The
purpose of this statement is to present a fiscal snapshot of CRA to the readers of the financial
statements. The Statement of Net Asvels includes year-end information concerning assets,
liabilities, and net assets. Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.

Net assets are displayed in three components, invested in capital assets, net of related deli,
restricted net assets, and unrestricted netl assets. Ncet assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets,
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Financial Statements —~ Continued

Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, prantors, contributors, or government [aws or
regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets represent all other net assets that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, nel of related debi.

Over time, readers of the financial statements will be able to evaluate CRA’s fiscal health
(liquidity and solvency) or financial position by analyzing the increases and decreases in net assets
to determine if CRA’s financial health 1s imyproving or deteriorating. The reader will also need to
consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and ncw or amended
legislation when evaluating the overall {inancial health of CRA. This stalement is also a good
source for readers to determine how much CRA owes to vendors and creditors and the available
assets that can be used to satisfy those liabilities.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets veports the financial (revenue and
expenses) activities of CRA and divides it into two catepories: (perating activities and Non-
operating activities. Operating activities include all financial activities associated with the
operation of CRA and its related programs, Consequently, all non-operating activities include all
financial activities not related to the operation of CRA. Changes in lofal net assets as presented on
the Statement of Nel Assets are based on the activity presented in this statement. This statement
helps to determine whether CRA had sufficient revenues o cover expenses during the year and its
net increase or decrease in net assets based on current year operations.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about CRA’s cash receipls and cash payments
during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and nel changes
in cash resulting from operations, investing, and capital and noncapital financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was cash used?”
and “what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?” This statement also is an
important tool in helping users assess CRA’s ability to generaie future net cash [lows, its ability to
meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external {inancing,

CRA's Sources of Income

The majority of CRA’s funding is the vesult of sales proceeds from CRA’s properties, rental income,
interest on investments, and funding from the U.S Department of [Housing and Urban Development
(HUD).
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Qther Financial Factors

CRA leases office space at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge Massachusetts. The original terms
of the lease agreesment state that the lease expired on June 30, 2009, however CRA amended the
lease on June 8, 2009 extending the term for an additional one year and nine months commencing
an July 1, 2009 and expiring on March 31, 2011. Under the amended lease, rental payments will
be a fixed rate of $54,196 per year commencing on July 1, 2009, Rent cxpense for this property
for the year ended December 31, 2009 was §52,868,

Contacting CRA's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of CRA's finances

and to show the accountability [or the funds received. If you have questions about this report or
need additional information, please contact Joseph Tulimieri, Executive Director at CRA.
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The Board of Dircetors
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Independent Auditors' Report

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as
of December 31, 2009, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Thosc standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial stalements are free of material misstaternent.  An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority as of December 31, 2009, and the changes
in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Managemeni Discussion and Analysis {s not a required part of the basic finaneial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Americe. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. Towever, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Seil) S uﬁy@@wp

June 11,2010

116 Hugptington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (617) 2629898 Fax (617) 4579937
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Statement of Net Assets
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Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current asgsets
Noncurrenl Assets:
Security deposit
Land inventory
Property and equipment, net

Total noncurrent asscls

Total assety
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities
Other liabilities

Totat current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Development deposits

Other postemployment benefit obligations

Accrued compensation

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total labilities
Net Assersy

Investment in capital assels
Unrestricted net assets

Total net agsets

§ 544,738
3,227
19,270
4,354,202

_A921.437
7,306

249,725

257,101
5,178,538

17,338
4,420
62,530
54,288

339,568
95,515
392,667
827,730

912,038

70

See accomparying notes to financial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statcrment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Nel Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Operating Revenues:
Reimbursed expenses
Rental income
Cirant income
Land proceeds

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administrative
Legal
Survey and planning
Property management
Occupancy
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenscs
Operating surplus

Nonoperating Revenues:
Inierest income

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

MNet assets, end of year

b 20,785

6,000
147,140

888,362
100,287
58,927
38,715
52,868
444

_L139,603

4,312,248

32,572

4,344,820

§ 4,266,500

See accompanying notes (o finuncial statements.



Cambridge Redevelopment Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Cash flows firom operating activities:

Receipts [rom grants, rentals, and Jand proceeds $ 3,815,929
Payments to vendors (549,817)
Payments to employees _(487,2320)
Net cash from operating activities 2,778,892
Cash flows from investing activities.
Net investment purchases (2,614,911)
Interest on investments 32572
Net cagh from investing activities (2,582,339)
Net change in cash 196,553
Cash at beginning of year 348,185
Cash at end of year 5 544,738

Reconciliation of operating loss (o net cash
Jrom operating activities!
Qperating surplus $ 4,312,248
Adjustment o reconcile operating loss to net
cash from operating activities:

Depreciation expensc 444
Change in assels and liabilities:
Increase in receivables (2,536)
Incrcase in prepaid expenscs (1,280)
Decrease in land inventory 207,627
Decrease in accounts payable (4,402)
Decrease in development deposits (1,841,013)
Increase in payroll liabilities 3,431
Increase in other postemployment benefit obligations 95,515
Increase in accrucd compensation 8,858
MNet cash from operating activities $ 2,778,892

See accompanying notes fo financial stefements.
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1. Type of Organization

The Cambridge Redevelopment Authonty (CRA) was established in 1955 to administer and plan
urban renewal and other community development projects within the City of Cambridge, CRA is
authorized by and operales under the provisions of Chapter 1218 of the General Laws, as
amended, which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. CRA was issued a
Certificate of Organization by the Secretary of the Commonwealth on November 20, 1956,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Cambridge Redevelopment Authority conform to accounting
principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental
units.

The following is a summary of CRA’s significant accounting policies:

Financial Statement Presentation - ln accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, CRA is considered a special purpose governmental entity that engapes in only business
type activities and is not a component unit of another povernmental entity. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and all of the activity is
recorded in the enterprise fund.

Basis of Accounting - The acerual method of accounting is used for all governmental entitics that
operate as business type entities. Accordingly revenue is recognized when eamed and capital
assets and expenditures are recorded when received and incwred, respectively. Grants and
contributions are recognized when all eligible requirements are met.

CRA applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict
or contradict GASB pronouncements. [n addition, CRA applies all applicable FASB Statements
and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements o its business-type activities,

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are presented net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on its
past experience. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollcctible.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of [inancial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates
also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates,
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents - TFor purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and all highly lquid investments with a maturity of three months or
lcss.

Vacation and Sick Pay - Employees earn vacation and sick time as they provide services to CRA.
They may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation, compensatory, and sick
tirne earned and, upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused time earned.
Termination is defined as loss of employment due to lay off or elimination of position without
fault on the employee’s part.

Cupital Assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost or at fair market value at the date of
donation. Capital assets purchased with a cost or value greater than $1,000 are capitalized,
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 years for
computer equipment, 5 years for other equipment, and 7 years for olfice furnishings.

Operating Reverue and Expenses - Operating revenue and expenses generally result from
redevelopment activities in connection with CRA’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues include federal and state grants, rental income and land sales. Operaling
expenses include redevelopment costs, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assets. All other revepue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and Xpenses.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Measurements establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That framework
provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markels for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

o Level 1 Inputs — Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

» Level 2 Inputs — Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted
prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets; or inputs other than quoted
prices that arc observable, such as models or other valuation methodologies;

» Level 3 Inputs — Unobservable inputs for where there is little, if any, market activity.

The assel’s or lability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation

techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unchservable inputs.
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3. Credit Risk

5.

CRA maintains its cash in bank deposits and other accounts, which, at times, will exceed
federally insured limits, CRA has not expericneed any losses in such accounts and believes it is
not exposed o any significant custodial credit risk on cash. As of December 31, 2009, the
amount of $64,612 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments consist of certificates of deposit. Certificates of deposit amounts in excess of the
FDIC insured limit are exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized. As
of Decermber 31, 2009, the amount of $141,636 was uninsured and uncollateralized,

Development Deposits

CRA receives development deposits in accordance with Development Agreements by and
between CRA and Boston Partners Limited Partnership (BPLP). The deposits are in
consideration of and secure BPLP’s right to the future purchase of land from CRA. Upon
purchase of the land all paid deposits would be deducted from the agreed-upon purchase price.
As of December 31, 2009, CRA holds a total of $339,568 in development deposits.

Pension Plan

CRA contributes to the Cambridge Retirement System (*System™), a cost sharing, multi-employer
public employee retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative agent for the
City of Cambnidge (City), The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusctts Contributory System
that is governed by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (“"MGL™).

Plan members are required to contribute (o the System, depending on their employrment date,
Active members must contribute between 5% and 10% of their regular gross compensation
depending on the date upon which their membership began. Participating employers are required
to pay into the System their share of the remaining System-wide actuarially determined
contribution and plan administration costs. The Commonwealth reimburses the City for a portion
of the benefit payments for cost-of-living increases, The contributions of plan members and the
participating employers arc governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL. CRA’s contribution to the
System for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $37,259 which equaled ils required
contribution for the year,

Investments

Investiments of $4,354,202 at Decernber 31, 2009 consist of certificates of deposit. Interest
rates on these investments range from 1% - 3.25% and maturities range from four to fifieen
months. The fair value of the investments included on the statement of financial position are
measured on a recurring basis based on prices for identical assets in active markets (Level 1),
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7. Operating Lease

CRA exiended the terms of the original five year lease for office space by a period of one year
and nine months, to March 31, 2011, Rent expense for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2009 was
$52,868. The minimum payments due over the lease term are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Amount
2010 $ 54,196
2011 13,549
Total 8 67745

8. Capita] Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2009 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance  Additions Retirements  Balunce
Equipment & [urnishings § 14972 § - ¥ - %5 14972
Less accumulated depreciation 14,458 444 - 14,902
Capital assels - net N 514§ (444 ¥ - b 70

9, Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits
CRA provides medical, dental, and life insurance plans benefits to eligible retirees of CRA.

The medical insurance plan is comprchensive medical both with and without Medicare
coordination via the Group Insurance Commission (GIC). An employee shall become eligible
to retire under this plan upon meeting attainment of age 55 as an active member and
completion of 10 years of service.

Cost sharing is 20% of premiums for participants and their [amilies who retire on or afier
October 1, 2009, 15% of premiums for those who retire between July 1, 1994 and October 1,
2009 and 10% for all others,

The dental insurance plan is comprehensive dental offered via the GIC and is 100% parlicipant
paid for all retirees and their familics.
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9. Ppstemployment Benefits Other than Pension Benefits — Conlinved

The life insurance plan is a 5,000 group term life insurance policy offered to retiress, Cost
sharing is 20% of premiums for participants who retire on or after October |, 2009, 15% of
premiums for those who retire between July 1, 1994 and October 1, 2009 and 10% for all
others,

Funding Policy — The contribution requirements of plan members and CRA are established
and may be amended through CRA ordinances. The required contribution is based on the
projected pay-as-you-go fNnancing requirements. For fiscal year 2009, CRA premiums plus
tmplicit costs for the retirec medical program arc $101,713.

CRA’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPER) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Sratement No. 43, The ARC represents a leve] of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and
amortize any wnfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of ten years. The
following table shows the components of CRA’s annual OPEB costs for the fiscal year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in CRA’s nct OPEB obligation to the plan:

Annual Required Contribution § 189642
Interest on net OPEB obligation 7,386
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB cost 197,228
Contributions made 101,713
Increase in net OPEDB obligation 95,515

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 955 lf;
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CRA’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPER obligation for the 2009 fiscal year and the two preceding years were as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPER  Percentage Net QPED

Ended Cost Coniributed  Obligation
2007 N/A N/A N/A
2008 N/A N/A N/A

2009 § 197,228 51.6% A 95,515

Effect of 1% Change in Healthcare Trend Rates - In the event that healtheare trend rates were
1% higher than forecast and employee contributions were to increase at the forecast rates, the
Actuarial Accrued Liability would increase to $1,721,442 or by 13.0% and the corresponding
Normat Cost would increase 1o $11,356 or by 25.8%. If such healthcare trend rates were 1% less
than forecast and employee contributions were to increase at the [orecast rate, the Actuarial
Accrued Liability would decrease to $1,356,410 or by 11.0% and the corresponding Normal
Cost would decrease to $7,182 or by 20.5%

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of January 1, 2009, the most recent valuation date,
the plan was 0.0% funded. The actuarial liability for benefits was $1,523,529, and the actuarial
value of assets was $0.0 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued Hability (UAALY) of
$1,523,529. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$349,054 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 436.5%. Actuarial valuations of
an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and heafthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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9. Posterployment Benefits Other than Pension Benefits - Continued

Actuarial Cost Method: Projected Unif Credit
Investment Rate of Return: 4.00% per annum
Healthcare Trend Rates: Fiscal
Year Medical
2008 10.0%
2009 9.0%
2010 8.0%
2011 7.0%
2012 6.0%
2013 5.0%
2014 5.0%
2015 5.0%
General Inflation Assumption: 3.5% per annum
Annual Compensation [ncreases! 4,5% per annum
Actuarial Value of Assets: Market Value
Amortization of UAAL: Amortized as level dollar amount
over 10 years at transition
| Remaining Amortization Period: 10 years at January 1, 2009

10. Subsequent Events

o CRA has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through June 11, 2010, which is the
date CRA’s financial statements were issued. No material subsequent events have occurred
since December 31, 2009 that required recognition or disclosure in these financial statements.



